HOUSE FI NANCE COVM TTEE
March 24, 2003
3:39 PM

TAPE HFC 03 — 37, Side A
TAPE HFC 03 - 37, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 3:39 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Ji m Wi taker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Mses

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens; Senator Ben Stevens; Cheryl Sutton,
Staff, Senator Ben Stevens; Chuck Harlanert, Revenue Audit
Supervi sor, Tax Division, Departnment of Revenue

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Kris Norusz, Icicle Seafoods
SUVMARY

HB 90 "An Act relating to a salnon product devel opnment
tax credit under the Al aska fisheries business tax
and the Al aska fisheries resource |anding tax; and
providing for an effective date."

CSHB90 (FI'N) was REPORTED out of Commttee with No
Recommendati on and one new fiscal inpact note from
t he Departnent of Revenue.

HB 104 "An Act relating to paynent of the fisheries

busi ness tax and to security for collection of the
fisheries business tax."

House Fi nance Committee 1 03/ 24/ 03 3:39 PM



CSHB 104 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmttee with
a "do pass" recommendation and with one new fi scal
i npact note fromthe Departnent of Revenue.

#hb90

HOUSE BILL NO. 90

"An Act relating to a salnon product devel opnent tax
credit under the Al aska fisheries business tax and the
Al aska fisheries resource |anding tax; and providing
for an effective date."

Co-Chair Harris MOVED to ADOPT the Committee Substitute HB
90 (FIN), Work Draft 23-LS0525\1 (U ernohle). There being
no OBJECTI ON the Comm ttee Substitute was ADOPTED.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS, SPONSCR, spoke in support of the bill.
He explained that the Commttee Substitute resulted from
work with the Sal non Task Force over the past seven nonths.
He noted that the Salnon Task Force prioritized its
proposals to the legislature based on potential inpact to
the 2003 harvest cycle. He pointed out that the bill
contained two tax credits: one for product devel opnent and
one for salnon utilization.

Senator B. Stevens went on to explain inportant elenents of
the salnmon product developnent tax credit. First, he
pointed out that the credit could not exceed a taxpayer’s
liability by nore than fifty percent. Second, he noted that
the opportunity to invest lasted for three years, with a
three-year carry on for those investnents nmade in the third
year.

Senator B. Stevens stated that the credit applied to
processing vessels as well as shore plants. He enphasi zed
that the credit applied to the property first placed in
service, encouraging investnent in new equi pnent to produce
new products for the industry with the intent of raising the
vessel value over the long term

Senator B. Stevens also noted that a taxpayer may not
participate in the program if they are in arrears on any
other state liability.

Senator B. Stevens discussed the salnon utilization tax
credit, and reiterated that a taxpayer could not exceed
fifty percent of their liability with a conbination of the
two tax credits. He also noted the difference between the
two tax credits: one being for equipnent to produce new
products, and one for “the <cost associated wth the
devel opnent, manufacture, purchase, or operation of new
equi pnent or a manufacturing process to produce narketable
products using the bones, skin, viscera and carcasses of
sal non” (page 4, line 5). He noted that this |anguage was

House Fi nance Committee 2 03/ 24/ 03 3:39 PM



added in an effort to attract the industry toward full
utilization.

Senator B. Stevens observed that the bill was a priority
of the Sal non Task Force, and suggested that the |egislation
would ultimately raise the ex vessel value over the next
three years by raising product quality.

Senator B. Stevens stated that the inpact of fiscal note was

uncertain until investnment was actually nmade. He expl ai ned
that the fiscal note nerely projected inpact of potentia
i nvest nent . He stated that the long-term return of the

benefit was al so undeterm ned at this tine.

In response to a question by Co-Chair Harris, Senator
Stevens explained that the Fisheries Business Tax was a
buyers tax, paid based on the value of a product purchased,
differentiating this from whol esal e val ue. He noted that
the tax was 3 percent on shore and 5 percent off shore.

Senator B. Stevens clarified that the tax credits pertained
to both on and off shore processors. He confirmed that the

bill did not focus on fishers but rather on the tax
liability of processors, whether a large multi-facility or a
smal |, individually owned facility.

Representative Croft referred to a Letter of Intent witten
by the House Special Committee on Fisheries, signed by
Representative Seaton, recommending two additions to the
bill. Senator B. Stevens stated that these additions were
not included in the Conmttee Substitute.

Senator B. Stevens went on to explain that the Letter of
Intent requested the addition of a refined definition of
“val ue added” and a “claw back” provision in case the system

was abused. Senator Stevens suggested that if policy was
created to address potential abusers, the policy then | ost
its value. He reiterated that this |anguage was not

included in the | egislation.

In response to a question by Representative Stoltze, Senator
B. Stevens confirmed that if a taxpayer 1invested and
utilized the tax credit, it would reduce the liability to
t he general fund.

Representative Stoltze asked if a cap for individuals or the

overall tax credit was considered. Senator B. Stevens
reiterated that taxpayers were limted to fifty percent of
their total liability. He indicated that an overall cap was

not consi dered but specul ated that, since the total [sal non]
tax was $5.6 mllion, if fully utilized the credit would
still yield $2.8 million to the state.

House Fi nance Committee 3 03/ 24/03 3:39 PM



Vice-Chair Meyer referred to the fiscal note dated 3/20/03
witten by the Departnent of Revenue and asked for an
expl anation of costs.

CHUCK  HALAMERT, CH EF OF OPERATI ONS, TAX DI VI SI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE projected an investnent in FY 04 of $3
mllion, with a maximum of $4.8 mllion in FY05. He stated
that the total credit over a six-year period was estinmated
at $4.9 mllion.

Co-Chair WIIlians asked for clarity about the changes in
fiscal inpact between the original bill and the Commttee
Substi t ute.

CHERYL SUTTON, STAFF, SENATOR BEN STEVENS, clarified that
the Commttee Substitute added a tax credit for full sal non
utilization to the original bill. She poi nted out however
that the conbined credits could not exceed fifty percent of
a taxpayer’'s liability.

Co-Chair WIllians asked if a fiscal note was created to
address the original bill. There was sone question as to
t he amount of change in the new fiscal note.

Co-Chair Harris observed that the new fiscal note [to the
House Fisheries’ ver si on] projected the state would
experience a |loss of approximtely $500 thousand in FY 04,
increasing to a maximumof $1.2 mllion, and then decreasing
to $50 thousand in FY 09. He further observed that state
operations cost would be approximately $23 thousand in
general funds. He asked for further explanation regarding
the $6 thousand reduction in cost between the new (3/20/03)
and the previous (3/04/03) fiscal notes.

M. Harlanmert explained that the difference in cost was due
to an error in the original fiscal note. He noted that an
audit position and associated travel was included in the
original fiscal note, and explained that the position was
elimnated fromthe subsequent fiscal note.

In response to a question by Representative Croft, M.
Harlanmert clarified that the value added sal non processing
equi pnent credit would generate $2 to $3 mllion in
investnment in the first year.

Representative Croft mai nt ai ned that the new credit
definition was nuch nore broad. He specul ated that any new
equi pnrent used to market the product would potentially
qual ify.

M. Harlanert concurred that full wutilization potential was
much nore broad.

House Fi nance Committee 4 03/ 24/ 03 3:39 PM



Representative Croft asked whet her the deduction could total
fifty percent of as nmuch as $5.6 million if full utilization
occurred. He suggested that the loss to the general fund
woul d be between $1.2 mllion and $2.8 mllion.

M. Harlanmert pointed out that the credit was intended to
generate investnent in its first three years, which then
could apply toward taxes generated over a six-year period.
He noted the potential to | everage earnings beyond the fifty
percent figure.

Representative Croft asked if, assumng that the taxes
remai ned sonewhat stable at $5.6 mllion, the maxi num of
general fund revenue in any one-year would be $2.8 mllion.

Co-Chair WIllianms asked for an estimate of the potentia
revenue | oss, wthout the incentive.

M. Harlamert explained that the revenue inpact was
i npossible for the departnent to determ ne, and sonething
that an econom st m ght better determ ne.

Representative Witaker <clarified that the state would
receive approximately $2.5 mllion in tax revenues in any
given year, under the new tax credits, and asked if the
revenue curve was declining or flat.

M. Harlanmert speculated that the state had experienced a
downward trend in salnon tax. He maintained that it was
uncl ear how much the credit would affect this pattern.

Representative Whitaker asked how applications would be
reviewed if the credit were fully utilized.

M. Harlanert responded that there was no conpetition anong
participants, since there was no set anmount for the tax
relief, other than a percentage of existing taxation.

Representative Witaker followed up to ask if projections
were therefore conservative, and if there mght be a great
deal nore participation

M. Harlanert expressed his belief that the projections were
optimstic in terms of generating credit. He specul ated
that a fairly limted group of taxpayers had the required
liability and were able to take advantage of the credit. He
explained that the liability was based on what they paid for
raw fish.

Representative Chenault theorized that if liability were
based on paynent for product, revenue would increase by
creating a better product. M. Harlanert concurred that if

prices increased, the tax revenue would al so i ncrease.

House Fi nance Committee 5 03/ 24/03 3:39 PM



KRIS NORUSZ, |CH CLE SEAFOODS, testified via teleconference
in support of the bill. She maintained that the bill
supported devel opnent of the industry. She cited a previous
tax credit in the 1980's, and stated that her conpany took
advantage of that credit to purchase inproved equi pnent that
i ncreased efficiency. She proposed that a simlar tax
credit would also stinulate industry devel opnent.

Representative Stoltze asked whether the Adm nistration was
in support of the bill

Ms. Sutton responded that the Adm nistration supported the
bill. Representative Stoltze requested that witten support
be available should the bill proceed to the House Fl oor
Ms. Sutton confirmed that the Adm nistration viewed the bil
as a nethod of inproving the industry this season.

Representative Joule expressed his desire to also see
| egi sl ation that supported fishers as well as processors.

Represent ati ve Wi taker asked for clarity about which fiscal
note woul d be adopt ed.

Co-Chair WIllians stated that an updated [Departnent of
Revenue] fiscal note would acconpany the bill to the House
Fl oor .

Representati ve Wi taker asked for assurance that the fisca
note represented an accurate range of projections.

M. Harl anert clarified that the fi scal note for the
Committee Substitute would be different from the current
fiscal note, both in terns of revenue and operating costs.

Co-Chair WIlianms addressed the issue of salnon utilization.
He noted that currently the industry experienced costly
difficulty in processing and di sposing of sal non waste.

Representative Joule asked whether it was appropriate to
send the bill from Committee wthout an appropriate fisca
note. Co-Chair WIlianms also expressed his disconfort with
the lack of clarity over the new fiscal note.

Vice-Chair Meyer also expressed his disconfort with this
process. He asked about the conpliance associated wth the
fish product waste.

Co- Chair WIIlians specul ated that the  Environnent al
Protection Agency and the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation set requirenents for dealing wth waste
di sposal . He noted that the State did not have water
primacy issues. He discussed the nethods for handling these
waste products and enphasized its inportance to industry
partici pants.

House Fi nance Committee 6 03/ 24/03 3:39 PM



Vice-Chair Meyer asked whether the process needed to be
examned to find a solution to the disposal requirenents.

TAPE HFC 03 - 37, Side B

Senat or Ben Stevens addressed concerns regarding the new

fiscal note. He clarified that the conbination of the
devel opment and the wutilization tax credits could never
exceed fifty percent of a wuser’s total liability. He

mai ntai ned that since the fisheries business tax generated
$5.6 million, the cost of full utilization was $2.8 mllion.
He speculated that the investnent Ilevel was the only
unknown.

Representative Croft observed that the fiscal note was

between $1.2 nmillion and $2.8 mnllion. Senat or Stevens
stated that the $1.2 million figure was based on the credit
not being fully utilized in the first year. He mai nt ai ned

that it was uncl ear how many processors would participate in
the credit.

Senator B. Stevens stated that the value of the product
correlated directly to the tax revenue. He expl ai ned that
the intent of the bill was to increase the value of the
overal |l industry. He indicated that the |argest year for
t he sal mon industry was $882 mllion.

Representative Croft speculated whether if salnon prices
rebounded the tax credit would generate a greater cost.
Senator Stevens pointed out that the credit was only for
three years, and maintained that the industry would |ikely
not change significantly in that tine.

Senator B. Stevens indicated that the purpose of the
| egi slation was to stinulate investnent in the industry. He
pointed out that the wuncertainty was not in the cap of
liability but rather in the managenent of the liability.

Representative Croft clarified that the full utilization
credit was to encourage processing of all discard, excluding
traditionally used parts of the fish.

Senator B. Stevens referred to Page 2, line 23 of the bill
(FSH), which outlined val ue added portions.

Representative Croft expressed confusion as to the specific
equi pnent that could be witten off with the utilization
credit. Senator Stevens conceded that sone equi pnent may be
included in the developnent tax credit and as well as the
utilization credit, but pointed out that both credits apply
to the sane fisheries business tax.

House Fi nance Committee 7 03/ 24/ 03 3:39 PM



Representative Croft naintained that, since different limts
pertained to each credit, it mght allow for abuse of the
tax credit system

LARRY PERSILY, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,
testified via tel econference regarding the new fiscal note.
He provided information on the fiscal history of the
busi ness fisheries tax. He noted that in fiscal years 93
through 96, the [total fisheries] tax revenue was $42, $34,
$39, and $38 nillion respectively. He also stated that in
FY 02 the tax revenue was at $25.5 million.

M. Persily explained that the original fiscal note had been
revised on March 20. He referred to the Finance Conmttee
Wrk Draft, and commtted to publishing a final Commttee
Substitute fiscal note by the next day.

In response to a question by Representative Croft, M.
Persily stated that the total FY 02 fisheries business tax
revenue was approximately $25.3 million, with half going to
the general fund and half to municipalities.

Senator B. Stevens noted that the fisheries business tax
applied to all species, such as halibut, crab etc. He
clarified that the tax under consideration pertained only to
t he sal non portion, which was $5.6 mllion.

Representative Croft confirmed his support of assisting
i ndustry devel opnent. He stated his belief that the cap was
not a clear $2.8 mllion, but rather 50 percent of the price
of product, which fluctuated. He specul ated that the anount
m ght therefore exceed $2.8 mllion. He stated that this
anount was contained in the fiscal note, and should
therefore be clear.

Representative Croft MOWED to report CSHB 90 out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSHB 90 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with “No
Reconmendati on” and one new fiscal note from the Departnent
of Revenue.

#hb104

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 104

"An Act relating to paynent of the fisheries business
tax and to security for collection of the fisheries
busi ness tax."

SENATOR GARY STEVENS, SALMON TASK FORCE, testified in

support of the bill. He pointed out that the previous bill
(HB 90) was nodel ed after a successful bill, which assisted

House Fi nance Committee 8 03/ 24/03 3:39 PM



the pollock industry. He expressed his hope that the

current bill would have a simlar affect on the sal non
i ndustry.

Senator G Stevens explained that HB 104 also pertained to
the processing industry. He noted that often the snaller
processors did not have the financial depth to pay tax
liabilities on an annual basis. He noted that the bill

al l owed taxes to be paid on a nonthly basis.

Senator G Stevens indicated that |arger processors m ght
choose to continue to pay their taxes annually. He noted
that participants would be required to file a bond for $50
t housand, or denonstrate |ienable property valued at $100

t housand. He speculated that it mght only be taken
advantage of by a handful of snaller processors. He
summarized that the bill allowed smaller processors to

expand devel opnent.

Representative Chenault expressed concern on behalf of
processors in his area. He asked about the accessibility of
a $50 t housand bond.

Senator Stevens responded that the legislation did not
prevent processors to continue with their current business
practices, but nerely provi ded them wth anot her
opportunity.

Ms. Sutton noted that a Sal non Task Force nenber who owns a
sal non processing center in Naknek viewed the bill as an
opportunity that would benefit his business nanagenent.

Representative Foster MOWED to report CSHB104 out of
Commttee with the acconpanying fiscal note

There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSHB 104 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with one new fiscal inpact note
fromthe Departnent of Revenue.

#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:47 PM

House Fi nance Committee 9 03/ 24/03 3:39 PM



